
SEPTEMBER 23, 2014  PAGE 1 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS  
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
TUESDAY 11:00 a.m. SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 
 
PRESENT: 

David Humke, Chairman 
Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson 

Marsha Berkbigler, Commissioner 
Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner 

Kitty Jung, Commissioner 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk 
John Slaughter, County Manager 

Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel 
Charles Moore, Fire Chief 

 
 The Board convened at 12:09 p.m. in regular session in the Commission 
Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada, and conducted the following business: 
 
14-0133F AGENDA ITEM 2 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board 
of Fire Commissioners agenda. The District will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person.  
Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners as a whole.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
14-0134F AGENDA ITEM 3 
 
Agenda Subject: “Fire Chief Report – A) Report and discussion related to fire 
district operations and B) Monthly Statistics.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore talked about Kid’s Camp and expressed 
gratitude to the Washoe County Parks and Recreation Department and to the Northlake 
Fire Protection District for their support. He said Scott Stephenson, Captain of the 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD), brought the idea forward and most 
of the work was done by staff volunteers on their own time. He introduced some of the 
Kid’s Camp staff and asked Captain Stephenson to provide the Board with an update.  
 
 Captain Stephenson said 29 kids attended the camp, which was made 
possible by approximately 50 volunteers and 18 sponsors who helped fund it. He thought 



PAGE 2  SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 

it was a great success and said plans were going forward for 2015. Chairman Humke 
went to the graduation event and noticed many proud and grateful family members in 
attendance, which he thought was rewarding for camp volunteers. The Kid’s Fire Camp 
video was shown to the Board later in the meeting. 
 
 In response to Commissioner Hartung’s question about cost, Captain 
Stephenson reported the cost was $99 per student and said five children were sponsored 
by donations. Chairman Humke and Commissioner Hartung remarked they would like to 
see a Commissioner scholarship for next year and hoped they could send at least five kids 
to camp. Captain Stephenson thanked the volunteer staff and Chief Moore said the camp 
had a positive effect on youth and he hoped it would generate future firefighters. 
 
 John Slaughter, County Manager, said he attended the graduation event 
and thought it was great. Chairman Humke commented Kid’s Camp was on the list of 
positive things the Board was fortunate to be a part of and he thought it was very 
rewarding. Mr. Slaughter mentioned that Washoe County Television (WCTV) created a 
video about the event and it would be posted on the County website. Chief Moore said he 
would make sure it was on the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) 
website as well. 
 
 Chief Moore reported the Insurance Service Office (ISO) completed its 
audit of the Gerlach Volunteer Fire Department and the rating was improved by almost 
two points. He was pleased with his staff’s hard work and said they would continue to 
work on making improvements.  
 
 Chief Moore announced the second battalion would be coming online on 
October 11th, which would be a significant improvement to District operations. He 
explained they had been operating with only one Battalion Chief in the Arrowcreek Fire 
Station and since most fires seemed to happen in the north it became problematic for the 
Battalion Chief to respond from his location in the south. He said the current Battalion 
Chief was recently relocated north to the Sun Valley Fire Station with a crew of four 
firefighters. With the addition of a second Battalion Chief in the Arrowcreek station there 
would be four firefighters in the south as well, which would benefit Hidden Valley and 
Verdi because they would have access to reserve firefighters. He stated the addition of a 
second Battalion Chief would improve response time, safety and the amount of time 
dedicated to operations management.  
  
 Chief Moore announced the placement of 54 new 800 Mhz  radios, which 
were purchased to meet new Federal Communications Commission (FCC) standards. He 
said he was asked by Commissioner Berkbigler to follow up on an issue reported in the 
Reno Gazette Journal (RGJ) regarding Township 22 boundary lines. He reviewed two 
maps, which were placed on file with the Clerk. The first map showed the Palomino 
Valley area. He explained everything north of the boundary line was in the 
unincorporated County and everything south of the line was in the TMFPD. He said the 
concern was that people north of the boundary line were receiving roughly the same 
amount of service from the Palomino Valley Fire Station as those in the south but were 



SEPTEMBER 23, 2014  PAGE 3 

not paying taxes for it. The next map Chief Moore talked about showed the Red Rock 
area where he said there was a similar situation. Although concerns were primarily 
focused on the issue in Palomino Valley, the Chief thought the Board might want to 
consider making boundary adjustments in both areas. He suggested having a community 
meeting at the Palomino Valley Fire Station to explain the situation to citizens and 
commented he thought a boundary line adjustment was a reasonable solution, which 
would provide for fairness in taxation. Chief Moore asked the Board for direction on the 
matter. 
 
 Chief Moore said Commissioner Hartung asked him to look at making 
improvements to the Wadsworth Fire Station and reported he discussed the issue with 
Don Pelt, Emergency Manager of the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe Volunteer Fire 
Department. He said the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe had seven volunteers in Wadsworth 
and another four people expressed interest in becoming volunteers at a recent meeting. 
Mr. Pelt proposed an idea to improve the fire response in Wadsworth, which would 
involve an Interlocal agreement. He explained the idea was for TMFPD to lease the 
Wadsworth fire station to the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe for $1.00 per year and to 
provide them with some equipment and training in exchange for making the initial 
response to a fire in the area. He thought it made a lot of sense because Pyramid Lake 
was close and could begin fire suppression operations before any other fire departments 
arrived. He thought by tightening up and expanding the mutual-aid relationship the 
problem could be solved without trying to create a whole new volunteer fire department. 
Chief Moore asked for Board direction regarding the proposal. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung thought the proposal was a good idea, but had 
concerns about an Interlocal Agreement which included equipment; therefore, he would 
like to see requirements added to ensure equipment would be maintained properly. He 
said he had concerns about the existing agreement with Storey County and wanted to 
know how the additional fire station, which Apple was supposed to provide, would play 
into everything. He thought Chief Moore was heading down the right path; however, he 
thought there were some housekeeping items to deal with. 
 
 Commissioner Jung asked about the volunteer report because it was not 
included in her packet. Chief Moore said computer issues impacted the ability to produce 
the report and he would come back with it the following month. Commissioner Hartung 
asked for clarification regarding the number of calls reported. He asked if they were 
counted by incident or by number of responders. Chief Moore explained that each 911 
call was counted as one incident. He said it was not their practice to count by the number 
of vehicles, no matter how aggressive the response. Commissioner Hartung thought it 
would be a good idea to assign unique identifiers to each incident and Chief Moore 
agreed. 
 
 Chairman Humke asked for a report regarding which stations were 
browned out. Chief Moore said there had only been two instances of station closure since 
July 1, 2012 and, on both occasions, for only a matter of a few hours. Chairman Humke 
thought that was a great record. 



PAGE 4  SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 

 There was no action taken or public comment on this item. 
 
14-0135F AGENDA ITEM 4  
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of an Amendment (Amendment No.2) to the existing 
Interlocal Agreement between Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) 
and Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) for fire service and consolidation. (All 
Commission Districts)”  
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said this agenda item was meant to clarify how 
money went back and forth between the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) and the 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD). He thought it was the Board’s 
intention to combine both budgets; however, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) required an 
agreement to be in place before money could be transferred from one district to another. 
He said both the internal and external auditors found a need for clarity in the agreement. 
Chief Moore did not think there was any downside to the amendment and stated it was 
purely for the purpose of adding precision to the contract so auditors and budgetary 
regulations were satisfied. He explained the amendment would authorize TMFPD to pay 
for staffing Station #30 (Bowers) in Washoe Valley, which was an SFPD fire station. He 
said the system worked when the budgets were combined together.  
 
 Commissioner Jung asked if the new language satisfied the concerns of 
the internal auditor. Allison Gordon, Washoe County Internal Auditor, stated she did not 
have the opportunity to read it and could not comment. Chief Moore said he thought Ms. 
Gordon had seen the changes and apologized to the Board. Commissioner Jung said she 
was not willing to vote on the item without clarity from the internal auditor and asked to 
see a dashboard so she could confirm the corrections were made and the internal auditor 
approved them. 
 
  Commissioner Berkbigler agreed with Commissioner Jung and stated she 
would feel more comfortable if the internal auditor reviewed the amendment to see if it 
addressed the concerns. She suggested pulling the item from the agenda so the auditor 
would have time to review it. 
 
 Chairman Humke asked if the outside auditor had given a statement 
indicating that the agreement was a prudent budgetary move. He wondered about the role 
of the internal auditor and thought it was the Board’s job to direct the auditor to look at 
different departments. Vicki Van Buren, TMFPD Senior Accountant, reported the 
auditors at Kafouri, Armstrong & Co. reviewed the proposed change, which was 
clarification of an issue brought forward by Allison Gordon. 
 
 John Slaughter, County Manager, addressed Chairman Humke’s question 
about the role of the internal auditor. He said the work plan for the auditor was reviewed 
by the Internal Audit Committee, which received direction from the Board. He stated this 
item was a continuation and partial closure of an internal audit of the TMFPD, which was 
conducted by Allison Gordon. 



SEPTEMBER 23, 2014  PAGE 5 

 Commissioner Hartung thought it was incumbent upon the Board to ask 
Ms. Gordon how long it would take her to review the agreement and Ms. Gordon stated 
she could get back to the Board at the next Fire Board meeting. 
  
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Jung, which motion duly carried with Commissioner Hartung voting “no”, it was ordered 
that agenda Item 4 be brought back to the Board on the next agenda. 
 
14-0136F AGENDA ITEM 5 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible action to approve an analysis of Truckee 
Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) and Sierra Fire Protection District 
(SFPD) by the Washoe County Internal Audit Division and LSM-Government 
Financial Management to determine the District cost per medical call. (All 
Commission Districts”  
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said this item was requested by Commissioner 
Hartung to determine how much money the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District 
(TMFPD) spent for medical calls. He said Regional Emergency Medical Services 
Authority (REMSA) was given authority by the District Board of Health to charge a 
surcharge for every transport so Wadsworth could be protected by a full-time ambulance. 
He looked at the financials and found the amount collected by REMSA was significant; 
therefore, he proposed having LSM-Government Financial Management conduct a study. 
He said the study would have a two-fold goal, to determine TMFPD’s medical-response 
costs and to determine how much was being generated by REMSA’s surcharge. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung thought it was important to obtain the information 
and review the agreement with REMSA because people were being forced to use their 
services. He said in Wadsworth and south Washoe Valley there were other agencies 
capable of responding much faster than REMSA and he thought it was the County’s 
responsibility to ensure people were being served quickly. He thought in some situations 
REMSA should relinquish authority and let Storey County or Lyon County provide 
transport if they were closer. He said it might be difficult to obtain true numbers from 
REMSA, but he thought they were substantive and he appreciated the Board’s 
consideration. 
 
 Chairman Humke said the information could be valuable for citizens and 
political subdivisions. He thought people wondered about the average cost of a medical 
call versus a structure or wildland fire call and asked if other fire departments would be 
interested in such an audit, since the information might be helpful to them as well. Chief 
Moore replied that he had not asked the other fire departments but, since operational 
costs of the other departments were different, the analyst would have to look at each of 
them individually, which could affect the dollar amount proposed on the staff report.  



PAGE 6  SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 

 Chairman Humke asked if LSM-Governmental Financial Management 
was out-of-state. Chief Moore said the company was local and was familiar with fire 
department operations. Chairman Humke asked the Chief if the audit would include a 
look at the cost of sending paramedic firefighters to assist REMSA in providing medical 
aid and Chief Moore confirmed it would. 
 
 Commissioner Jung wanted to know if the audit would take into account 
workers’ compensation costs. Chief Moore answered that he was unaware of any 
workers’ compensation costs incurred by TMFPD, but he knew the City of Reno had. 
Commissioner Jung wondered if the City of Reno would care to share their data and 
asked Chief Moore to inform the auditor that was of interest to the Board. 
 
 Chief Moore said there were some policy decisions to make regarding 
providing assistance to REMSA on medical calls. He related a case in which there was a 
REMSA supervisor on scene who could have assisted in transportation; however, a 
firefighter assisted instead. He said in a case like that he would need to give staff policy 
direction as far as when to go and when not to go. He talked about a stabbing which 
occurred in an area where multiple ambulances responded and injuries were critical and 
said the decision to help was clear because life was on the line. He said there was a need 
for a conversation with REMSA and the District Board of Health Oversight Board 
because; if REMSA was going to be the transport agency they should not rely on the fire 
department in 99 out of 100 transports. He thought the study would provide some hard 
and fast numbers to quantify costs so they could take the next step and make a policy 
decision. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung thought it was important for REMSA to 
understand the situation was about equity for taxpayers because there was a cost for 
TMFPD to provide assistance when REMSA should be doing the job. He commented 
about the REMSA supervisor who did not assist, which forced a fire engine out of 
service, and said that was a scenario that should be highlighted and brought to the 
forefront. He said he was not making pejorative statements, but there was a need for a 
conversation about equity. Chief Moore said it was fortunate they had the opportunity to 
engage REMSA through the District Board of Health Oversight Board so they could 
bring these types of problems out in to the open and find some common ground. He 
thought the Board should consider possible reimbursement costs from REMSA for the 
additional help. Chairman Humke asked about the timeframe for the audit. Chief Moore 
said he did not know but plans were to get started quickly. Chairman Humke thought it 
might take a couple of months and said $8,000 for the audit was a reasonable fee. 
 
1:09 p.m.  Commissioner Jung left the meeting. 
 
 Chairman Humke commented about a meeting he had with Reno Fire 
Chief, Mike Hernandez, at which the Chief discussed his interpretation of the Affordable 
Care Act (ACA). Chief Hernandez thought it provided for fire agencies to have the 
ability to charge for certain medical emergency and transport services. Chairman Humke 
wondered if the audit would lead to the same conclusion. Commissioner Hartung said 



SEPTEMBER 23, 2014  PAGE 7 

there were numerous agencies in California which charged insurance companies for 
services and that it was a recognized way to deal with those issues. He thought there was 
an ability to recover costs through the ACA and the Board should look into that. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Chairman Humke, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Jung absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 5 be approved. 
 
14-0137F AGENDA ITEM 6 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of an amended Interlocal Agreement for continued 
participation in the Washoe County Regional Communication System for radio 
communications between the County of Washoe, the Washoe County School 
District, the Nevada Department of Transportation, the City of Reno, the City of 
Sparks and the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and the Sierra Fire 
Protection District effective October 2014 through October 2029.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said the Interlocal Agreement would allow for 
the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) to continue it’s participation in 
the 800 Mhz radio system and share in the cost and maintenance of system infrastructure.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler wanted to know if this would allow for direct 
communication with the Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA). 
Chief Moore stated it would not because they were not connected to the system. He said 
it was a big issue discussed during negotiations of the new franchise agreement and 
eventually they would have to participate because of certain FCC regulations.  
 
1:13 p.m.    Commissioner Jung returned to the meeting.  
 
 Chairman Humke pointed out Exhibit C of the Interlocal Agreement listed 
REMSA as a sponsored agency and he wanted to know if they were invited to participate 
in the agreement. Chief Moore did not have an answer to the question but believed 
REMSA might have relationships outside of the Interlocal Agreement, which might give 
them the ability to communicate on 800 Mhz. Chairman Humke asked if there would be 
any detriment to holding off on approval of the amendment until all the parties could be 
brought in. Chief Moore thought there could be and said his recommendation would be 
not to withhold TMFPD’s participation in the agreement and suggested that a discussion 
could be had with the manager of the system to see if there was a way to bring REMSA 
into it. Chairman Humke said the issue should be brought up to the Board that was 
policing the Franchise Agreement with REMSA. He asked Chief Moore if all the firemen 
had the use of the alternate radio system so they could communicate with REMSA and 
Chief Moore confirmed they did. Chairman Humke thought additional costs were 
incurred because REMSA did not have industry standard equipment. He said he 
understood the Chief’s position and suggested moving forward with Board approval. 



PAGE 8  SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 

 Commissioner Berkbigler moved to approve Item 6; Commissioner Jung 
seconded the motion. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked Chief Moore what peril there would be in 
having a conversation with the District Board of Health prior to ratification of the 
agreement. Chief Moore said it was hard to answer that question but he did not want 
TMFPD to be out of contract. Commissioner Hartung stated his concern was REMSA 
would continue not to participate.  
 
 Chief Moore recalled that the Joint Operating Committee for the 800 Mhz 
system discussed looking at a technological solution to bridging Ultra High Frequency 
(UHF) and 800 Mhz communications between REMSA and other agencies. He said he 
would try to report back to the Board with more information. He recommended the Board 
ratify the agreement adding direction for him to work towards bringing REMSA into the 
communication system.  
 
  Commissioner Hartung asked Commissioner Berkbigler if she would 
amend the motion and she agreed to do so. She added an amendment to the motion which 
included direction to staff to work towards resolving the communication issue with 
REMSA; the seconder agreed. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Jung, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 6 be approved and 
directed. The Interlocal Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of the 
minutes thereof. 
 
1:25 p.m. Commissioner Weber left the meeting. 
 
14-0138F AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session for the purpose of discussing labor 
negotiations with Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District per NRS 288.220.” 
 
1:27 p.m.  On motion by Commissioner Hartung seconded by Commissioner 

Berkbigler, which motion duly carried with Commissioner Weber absent, 
it was ordered that the meeting recess to a closed session after the meeting 
was adjourned for the purpose of discussing with management 
representatives labor matters and negotiations.  

 
 There was no public comment on this item.  
 
1:28 p.m.  Commissioner Weber returned. 
 
 



SEPTEMBER 23, 2014  PAGE 9 

14-0139F AGENDA ITEM 8 
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners’/Fire Chief’s announcements, requests for 
information, topics for future agendas, and statements relating to items not on the 
Agenda. (No discussion among Commissioners will take place on this item.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said he would come to the Board twice in 
October to tie up remaining business and would bring the external audit to the Board in 
November. He did not think there would be anything to bring to the Board in December. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung stated he would like to see an audit of the 
Wadsworth fire hydrants.  
 
 Commissioner Jung thought there was a Board request for an audit of 
every fire hydrant and asked if that could be done. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung said the Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
(TMWA) oversaw many of the fire hydrants for the City of Reno and Sparks; however, 
he wanted the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) to maintain an audit 
of the hydrants as well. 
   
 Commissioner Weber asked for the issues regarding both the Palomino 
Valley and the Red Rock areas to be brought back before the Board at a later date.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler said she thought it was appropriate to adjust 
boundary lines and she thought the issue needed to be brought back to the Board as well.   
 
14-0140F AGENDA ITEM 9 
 
Agenda Subject:  “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board 
of Fire Commissioners agenda. The District will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. 
Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners as a whole.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
 * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PAGE 10  SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 

1:38 p.m. There being no further business to come before the Board, on motion by 
Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Berkbigler, which motion duly 
carried, the meeting was adjourned.  
 
 
 
 
 
  _________________________ 
  DAVID HUMKE, Chairman 
  Truckee Meadows Fire 
  Protection District and Sierra  
  Fire Protection District 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
NANCY PARENT, Washoe County Clerk 
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Truckee Meadows 
Fire Protection District and Sierra Fire 
Protection District 
 
Minutes Prepared By: 
Cathy Smith, Deputy County Clerk  
 










































	BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS
	TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	14-0133F AGENDA ITEM 2
	14-0134F AGENDA ITEM 3
	14-0135F AGENDA ITEM 4
	14-0136F AGENDA ITEM 5
	14-0137F AGENDA ITEM 6
	14-0138F AGENDA ITEM 7
	14-0139F AGENDA ITEM 8
	14-0140F AGENDA ITEM 9
	Cathy Smith, Deputy County Clerk



